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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027 
JJP@pisanellibice.com 
Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. 4534 
TLB@pisanellibice.com 
Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695 
DLS@pisanellibice.com 
Eric T. Aldrian, Esq., Bar No. 11897 
ETA@pisanellibice.com 
PISANELLI BICE PLLC 
3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800  
Las Vegas, Nevada   89169 
Telephone:  702.214.2100 
Facsimile:   702.214.2101 
 
Attorneys for Real Party in Interest 
Steven C. Jacobs 
 
 

 
LAS VEGAS SANDS, CORP., a 
Nevada corporation, and  
SANDS CHINA LTD., a 
Cayman Islands corporation, 
   
                        Petitioners,  
 
vs. 
 
CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT  
COURT, THE HONORABLE  
ELIZABETH GONZALEZ, 
DISTRICT JUDGE,  
DEPARTMENT 11, 
 
                       Respondents, 
 
and 
 
STEVEN C. JACOBS, 
 
    Real Party in Interest.    
 

Sup. Ct. Case No.  63444
 
District Court Case No.  
A‐10‐627691 
 
REAL PARTY IN INTEREST, 
STEVEN C. JACOBSʹ APPENDIX 
TO OPPOSITION TO 
EMERGENCY MOTION UNDER 
NRAP 27(e) TO STAY THE 
DISTRICT COURT'S JUNE 19, 2013, 
ORDER 
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Jul 03 2013 09:10 a.m.
Tracie K. Lindeman
Clerk of Supreme Court
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CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX 

  
 

DOCUMENT 
 

DATE 
 

VOL. PAGE 

  
Letter from P. Glaser to D. Campbell
 

11/23/2010 I APP000001-
03

Letter from D. Campbell to P. Glaser
 

11/30/2010 I APP000004-
05

Letter from P. Glaser to D. Campbell
 

12/03/2010 I APP000006-
08

Letter from D. Campbell to P. Glaser
 

01/11/2011 I APP000009

Exhibit 13 to Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' 
Opposition to Sands China Ltd.'s Motion 
to Dismiss for Lack of Personal 
Jurisdiction, or in the alternative, Failure 
to Join an Indispensable Party 
 

02/09/2011 I APP000010-
11 

Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' Initial 
Disclosures 
 

05/16/2011 I APP000012-
29 

Email from J. Williams to J. Jones
 

07/08/2011 I APP000030-
31 

Nevada Supreme Court Order Granting 
Petition for Writ of Mandamus 
 

08/26/2011 I APP000032-
35 

Order Regarding Plaintiff Steven C. 
Jacobs' Motion to Conduct Jurisdictional 
Discovery and Defendant Sands China 
Ltd.'s Motion for Clarification  
 

03/08/2011 I APP000036-
41 

Transcript of Sanctions Hearing – Day 3
 

09/12/2012 I APP000042-
47

Decision and Order ("September 
Sanctions Order") 
 

09/14/2012 I APP000048-
56 

Transcript of Status Check Hearing
 

10/30/2012 I APP000057-
61 

Transcript of Deposition of Michael 
Leven, Vol. I, Excerpts  
 

12/04/2012 I APP000062-
81 

 

Transcript of Hearing on Motions for 
Protective Order and Sanctions 
 

12/18/2012 I APP000082-
86 

Transcript of Deposition of Michael 
Leven, Vol. II, Excerpts  
 

02/01/2013 I APP000087-
104 
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DOCUMENT 
 

DATE 
 

VOL. PAGE 

Transcript of Hearing on Plaintiff 
Steven C. Jacobs' Motion for Protective 
Order 
 

02/08/2013 I APP000105-
09 

Defendants' Opposition to Plaintiff 
Steven C. Jacobs' Renewed Motion for 
NRCP 37 Sanctions 
 

02/25/2013 I APP000110-
39 

Order on Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' 
Motion to Return Remaining Documents 
from Advanced Discovery  
 

06/19/2013 I APP000140-
44 

Transcript of Hearing on Defendants' 
Motion to Stay Order 
 

06/27/2013 I APP000145-
49 

Email from M. Fetaz to counsel
 

06/28/2013 I APP000150
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ALPHABETICAL INDEX 

  
 

DOCUMENT 
 

DATE 
 

VOL. PAGE 

Decision and Order ("September 
Sanctions Order") 
 

09/14/2012 I APP000048-
56 

Defendants' Opposition to Plaintiff 
Steven C. Jacobs' Renewed Motion for 
NRCP 37 Sanctions 
 

02/25/2013 I APP000110-
39 

Email from M. Fetaz to counsel 06/28/2013 I 
 

APP000150

Email from J. Williams to J. Jones 07/08/2011 
 

I APP000030-
31 

Exhibit 13 to Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' 
Opposition to Sands China Ltd.'s Motion 
to Dismiss for Lack of Personal 
Jurisdiction, or in the Alternative, 
Failure to Join an Indispensable Party 
 

02/09/2011 I APP000010-
11 

Letter from P. Glaser to D. Campbell 11/23/2010 I APP000001-
03 

Letter from D. Campbell to P. Glaser
 

11/30/2010 
 

I APP000004-
05 

Letter from P. Glaser to D. Campbell 12/03/2010 I 
 

APP000006-
08 

Letter from D. Campbell to P. Glaser 01/11/2011 I APP000009

Nevada Supreme Court Order Granting 
Petition for Writ of Mandamus 
 

08/26/2011 I APP000032-
35 

Order on Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' 
Motion to Return Remaining Documents 
From Advanced Discovery 
 

06/19/2013 I APP000140-
44 

Order Regarding Plaintiff Steven C. 
Jacobs' Motion to Conduct Jurisdictional 
Discovery and Defendant Sands 
China Ltd.'s Motion for Clarification 
 

03/08/2011 I APP000036-
41 

Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' Initial 
Disclosures 
 

05/16/2011 I APP000012-
29 

Transcript of Deposition of Michael 
Leven Vol. I Excerpts 
 

12/04/2012 I APP000062-
81 
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DOCUMENT 
 

DATE 
 

VOL. PAGE 

Transcript of Deposition of Michael 
Leven Vol. II Excerpts 
 
 

02/01/2013 I APP000087-
104 

Transcript of Hearing on Defendants' 
Motion to Stay Order 
 

06/27/2013 I APP000145-
49 

Transcript of Hearing on Motions for 
Protective Order and Sanctions 
 

12/18/2012 I APP000082-
86 

Transcript of Hearing on Plaintiff 
Steven C. Jacobs' Motion for Protective 
Order 
 

02/08/2013 I APP000105-
09 

Transcript of Sanctions Hearing – Day 3
 

09/12/2012 I APP000042-
47

Transcript of Status Check Hearing 10/30/2012 
 

I APP000057-
61 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that I am an employee of Pisanelli Bice, and that on 

this 2nd day of July, 2013, I efiled and sent via email and United States Mail, 

postage prepaid, a true and correct copy of the above and foregoing REAL PARTY 

IN INTEREST, STEVEN C. JACOBS' APPENDIX TO OPPOSITION TO 

EMERGENCY MOTION UNDER NRAP 27(e) TO STAY THE DISTRICT 

COURT'S JUNE 19, 2013, ORDER VOLUME I OF I properly addressed to the 

following: 

 
J. Stephen Peek, Esq. 
Robert J. Cassity, Esq. 
HOLLAND & HART LLP 
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor 
Las Vegas, NV  89134 
 
J. Randall Jones, Esq. 
Mark M. Jones, Esq. 
KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP 
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor 
Las Vegas, NV  89169 
 
Steve Morris, Esq. 
Rosa Solis-Rainey, Esq. 
MORRIS LAW GROUP 
300 South Fourth Street, Suite 900 
Las Vegas, NV  89101 
 
SERVED VIA HAND-DELIVERY ON JULY 3, 2013 
 
The Honorable Elizabeth Gonzalez 
Eighth Judicial District Court, Dept. XI 
Regional Justice Center 
200 Lewis Avenue 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155 
 
 
 
 
 
       /s/ Kimberly Peets     
      An employee of Pisanelli Bice, PLLC 
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No. 58294 

FILED 

AUG 2 6 2011 

TRACIE K. LINDEMAN 
CLERK OF SUPREME COURT 

BY 
DEPUTY CLERK 

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

SANDS CHINA LTD., 

Petitioner, 

vs. 

THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF 

CLARK; AND THE HONORABLE 

ELIZABETH GOFF GONZALEZ, 

DISTRICT JUDGE, 

Respondents, 

and 

STEVEN C. JACOBS, 

Real Party in Interest. 

ORDER GRANTING PETITION FOR WRIT OF MANDAMUS 

This original petition for a writ of mandamus or prohibition 

challenges a district court order denying petitioner's motion to dismiss for 

lack of personal jurisdiction. 

Petitioner asserts that the district court improperly based its 

exercise of personal jurisdiction on petitioner's status as a subsidiary of a 

Nevada corporation with common officers and directors. Real party in 

interest contends that the district court properly determined that he had 

established a prima facie basis for personal jurisdiction based on the acts 

taken in Nevada to manage petitioner's operations in Macau. 

The district court's order, however, does not state that it has 

reviewed the matter on a limited basis to determine whether prima facie 

grounds for personal jurisdiction exist; it simply denies petitioner's motion 

to dismiss, with no mention of a later determination after consideration of 

evidence, whether at a hearing before trial or at trial. While the order 

refers to the district court's comments at oral argument on the motion, the 

SUPREME COURT 

OF 

NEVADA 

(0) 1947A 

An unpublished order shall not be regarded as precedent and shall not be cited as legal authority. SCR 123.
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SUPREME COURT 

OF 

NEVADA 

(0) 1947A 

gr:IVTD.I,MIGIRWMAlf'"11 

transcript reflects only that the district court concluded there were 

"pervasive contacts" between petitioner and Nevada, without specifying 

any of those contacts. We have therefore found it impossible to determine 

the basis for the district court's order or whether the district court 

intended its order to be its final decision regarding jurisdiction or if it 

intended to consider the matter further after the admission of evidence at 

trial (or an evidentiary hearing before trial). 

In MGM Grand, Inc. v. District Court,  107 Nev. 65, 807 P.2d 

201 (1991), we held that jurisdiction over a nonresident corporation could 

not be premised upon that corporation's status as parent to a Nevada 

corporation. Similarly, the United States Supreme Court in Goodyear 

Dunlop Tires Operations, S.A. v. Brown,  131 S. Ct. 2846 (2011), considered 

whether jurisdiction over foreign subsidiaries of a U.S. parent corporation 

was proper by looking only to the subsidiaries' conduct; the Court 

suggested that including the parent's contacts with the forum would be, in 

effect, the same as piercing the corporate veil. Based on the record before 

us, it is impossible to determine if the district court in fact relied on the 

Nevada parent corporation's contacts in this state in exercising 

jurisdiction over the foreign subsidiary. 

Accordingly, having reviewed the petition, answer, reply, and 

other documents before this court,' we conclude that, based on the 

summary nature of the district court's order and the holdings of the cases 

'Petitioner's motion for leave to file a reply in support of its stay 

motion is granted, and we direct the clerk of this court to detach and file 

the reply attached to the August 10, 2011, motion. We note that NRAP 

27(a)(4) was amended in 2009 to permit a reply in support of a motion 

without specific leave of this court; thus, no such motion was necessary. 

APP000033



/ 
Hardesty Parraguirre 

3 
?-7P3Ve.:4 

cited above, the petition should be granted, in part. We therefore direct 

the district court to revisit the issue of personal jurisdiction over petitioner 

by holding an evidentiary hearing and issuing findings regarding general 

jurisdiction. If the district court determines that general jurisdiction is 

lacking, it shall consider whether the doctrine of transient jurisdiction, as 

set forth in Cariaga v. District Court, 104 Nev. 544, 762 P.2d 886 (1988), 

permits the exercise of personal jurisdiction over a corporate defendant 

when a corporate officer is served within the state. We further direct that 

the district court shall stay the underlying action, except for matters 

relating to a determination of personal jurisdiction, until a decision on 

that issue has been entered. We therefore 

ORDER the petition GRANTED AND DIRECT THE CLERK 

OF THIS COURT TO ISSUE A WRIT OF MANDAMUS instructing the 

district court to hold an evidentiary hearing on personal jurisdiction, to 

issue findings of fact and conclusions of law stating the basis for its 

decision following that hearing, and to stay the action as set forth in this 

order until after entry of the district court's personal jurisdiction decision. 2  

Saitta 

2Petitioner's motion for a stay is denied as moot in light of this 

order. 

SUPREME COURT 

OF 

NEVADA 

(0) 1947A 

3 
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cc: 	Hon. Elizabeth Goff Gonzalez, District Judge 

Glaser, Weil, Fink, Jacobs, Howard & Shapiro, LLC 

Campbell & Williams 

Eighth District Court Clerk 

SUPREME COURT 

OF 

NEVADA 

(0) 1947A 

4 
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TRAN
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
* * * * *

STEVEN JACOBS                .
                             .
             Plaintiff       .   CASE NO. A-627691
                             .

     vs.                .
                             .   DEPT. NO. XI
LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., et al..
                             .   Transcript of
             Defendants      .   Proceedings
 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

COURT'S SANCTION HEARING - DAY 3

WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2012

APPEARANCES:

FOR THE PLAINTIFF: JAMES J. PISANELLI, ESQ.
DEBRA SPINELLI, ESQ.
TODD BICE, ESQ.

FOR THE DEFENDANTS: J. STEPHEN PEEK, ESQ.
BRAD D. BRIAN, ESQ.
HENRY WEISSMAN, ESQ.
JOHN OWENS, ESQ.

FOR HOLLAND & HART CHARLES McCREA, ESQ.
SAMUEL LIONEL, ESQ.

FOR MR. KOSTRINSKY: JEFFREY A. GAROFALO, ESQ.

COURT RECORDER: TRANSCRIPTION BY:

JILL HAWKINS           FLORENCE HOYT
District Court      Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript
produced by transcription service.
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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2012, 9:26 A.M.

2 (Court was called to order)

3           MR. PEEK:  Your Honor, my apologies for a --

4 THE COURT:  Not your problem.  I mean, there was a

5 flood yesterday, and I went down and looked at the wall this

6 morning and it was still wet.  So it affected the equipment,

7 and I know it affected the people down there.  So don't worry

8 about it.

9           MR. PEEK:  Thank you.

10 MR. BRIAN:  Your Honor, both sides got a message

11 from Mr. Kostrinsky's counsel that he wanted to come back this

12 morning and offer some supplemental or clarifying or

13 correcting testimony.  He thought it would be short.  I think

14 both of agree that that can -- which should proceed first if

15 that's convenient to the court.

16 THE COURT:  Sure.  Mr. Kostrinsky, why don't you

17 come on back up.

18 MR. BRIAN:  There may be, as you probably

19 anticipate, a privilege issue, but we'll deal with that.  But

20 procedurally we all agree.

21 THE COURT:  Mr. Garofalo, so nice of you to join us

22 today.

23 MR. GAROFALO:  Good morning, Your Honor, Jeff

24 Garofalo for the witness.

25 THE COURT:  I had Mr. Lee in the box where you
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1 that he used?

2 A    I vaguely do recall that, yes.

3 Q    So there was one out of four that you currently

4 have?

5 A    Yes.

6 Q    Okay.

7 A    Of the actual systems themselves.  May I clarify?

8 Q    Sure.

9 A    I did recently become aware that another system was

10 located in the May 2011 time period --

11 Q    Okay.

12 A    -- that was also provided to I believe it was either

13 FTI or Stroz Friedberg to be imaged.

14 Q    All right.  And so that was in May 2011 an

15 additional -- and this was one of the other original media

16 sources?

17 A    I believe it was one of those computers that Mr.

18 Jacobs had access to.

19 Q    Okay.  So you think that two out of the four of the

20 originals have been found?

21 A    Again, that's my understanding from what I can

22 recall at this point.

23 Q    All right.  Do you know which two were found?

24 A    Well, clearly the one I just mentioned, which was

25 apparently a desktop that Mr. Jacobs had used previously.  The
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1 others I -- the other I don't recall specifically whether that

2 was one of the laptops or desktops.  Actually, I believe there

3 is a reference that the desktop computer was not -- was not

4 kept and that that was an item of concern.  So clearly it was

5 not that other desktop.

6 Q    It was not the desktop that had been located?

7 A    Yeah.

8 Q    Do you know what happened to the original desktop

9 machine from which the ghost image was created?

10 A    Again, I believe that that was being searched for. 

11 I can't specifically recollect as to whether or not they

12 managed to find it or not.

13 Q    What is the policy of when a computer -- when an

14 employee leaves and the computer is then recycled back into

15 the population?  What happens to the -- is the computer first

16 scrubbed before it is recycled?

17 A    That is the normal procedure that we would follow.

18 Q    So in this particular case if normal procedure was

19 followed and that desktop machine that Mr. Jacobs had used was

20 to be put back into circulation, it would be scrubbed;

21 correct?

22 A    That's my understanding, yes.

23 Q    And when it would be scrubbed, tell us -- tell Her

24 Honor what happens as a result of that scrubbing.

25 A    Essentially all the information on that computer

APP000045
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INDEX

NAME                   DIRECT    CROSS     REDIRECT    RECROSS

THE COURT'S WITNESSES

Michael Kostrinsky   3    4
(Video Depo Played, 150
not transcribed)
Justin Jones  9 13
Manjit Singh 85 94

* * *
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL
SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

 9/13/12
                                                    
FLORENCE HOYT, TRANSCRIBER   DATE
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CLERK OF THE COURT 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

STEVEN JACOBS, 

vs 

DISTRICT COURT 

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

Case No. 10 A 627691 
Plaintiff( s), Dept. No. XI 

Date of Hearing: 09/10-12/12 
LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP, ET AL, 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) Defendants. 

DECISION AND ORDER 

This matter having come on for an evidentiary hearing before the Honorable Elizabeth 

Gonzalez beginning on September 10, 2012 and continuing day to day, based upon the 

availability of the Court and Counsel, until its completion on September 12, 20 12; Plaintiff 

Steven Jacobs ("Jacobs") being present in court and appearing by and through his attorney of 

record, James Pisanelli, Esq., Todd Bice, Esq., and Debra Spinelli, Esq. of the law firm of 

Pisanelli Bice; Defendant Las Vegas Sands appearing by and through its counsel J. Stephen 

Peek, Esq. of the law firm of Holland & Hart and counsel for purposes of this proceeding, 

Samuel Lionel, Esq. and Charles McCrea, Esq., of the law firm of Lionel Sawyer & Collins; 

Defendant Sands China appearing by and through its counsel J. Stephen Peek, Esq. of the law 

firm of Holland & Hart, Brad D. Brian, Esq., Henry Weissman, Esq., and John B. Owens, Esq. 

of the law firm of Munger Tolles & Olson and counsel for purposes of this proceeding, Samuel 

Lionel, Esq. and Charles McCrea, Esq., of the law firm of Lionel Sawyer & Collins; the Court 

having read and considered the pleadings filed by the parties and the transcripts of prior 

hearings; having reviewed the evidence admitted during the trial; and having heard and 

carefully considered the testimony of the witnesses called to testify; the Court having 

considered the oral and written arguments of counsel, and with the intent of deciding the 

limited issues before the Court related to lack of candor and nondisclosure of information to 

Pagel of9 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

the Court and appropriate sanctions pursuant to EDCR 7.60. The Court makes the following 

findings of fact and conclusions of law: 

I. 
PROCEDURAL POSTURE 

On August 26, 2011, the Nevada Supreme Court issued a stay of proceedings in this 

matter pending the conduct of an evidentiary hearing and decision on jurisdictional issues 

related to Sands China. The Court granted Jacobs request to conduct jurisdictional discovery 

prior to the evidentiary hearing. The order granting the jurisdictional discovery was ultimately 

entered on March 8, 2012. 

II. 
FINDINGS OF FACT1 

1. Prior to litigation, in approximately August 2010, a ghost image of hard drives 

13 of computers used by Steve Jacobs in Macau2 and copies of his outlook emails were transferred 

14 by way of electronic storage devices (the "transferred data") to Michael Kostrinsky, Esq., 

15 Deputy General Counsel of Las Vegas Sands. 3 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

1 Counsel for Las Vegas Sands objected on the basis of attorney client privilege to a majority of the 
questions asked of the counsel who testified during the evidentiary hearing. Almost all of those 
objections were sustained. While numerous directions not to answer on the basis of attorney client 
privilege and the attorney work product were made by counsel for Las Vegas Sands, sustained by the 
Court, and followed by the witnesses, sufficient information was presented through pleadings already in 
the record and testimony of witnesses without the necessity of the Court drawing inferences related to 
the assertion of those privileges. See generally, Francis v. Wynn, 127 NAO 60 (2011). The Court also 
rejects Plaintiffs suggestion that adverse presumptions should be made by the Court as a result of the 
failure of Las Vegas Sands to present explanatory evidence in its possession and declines to make any 
presumptions which might arguably be applicable under NRS Chapter 47. 

2 There is an issue that has been raised regarding the current location of those computers and hard 
drives from which the ghost image was made. The Court does not in this Order address any issues 
related to those items. 

3 According to a status report filed by Las Vegas Sands on July 6, 2012, there were other transfers of 
electronically stored data. Based upon testimony elicited during the evidentiary hearing, counsel was 
unaware of those transfers prior to the preparation and filing ofthe status report. 
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2. Kostrinsky requested this information in anticipation of litigation with Jacobs 

after learning of receipt of a letter by then general counsel for Las Vegas Sands from Don 

Campbell. 

3. This transferred data was placed on a server at Las Vegas Sands and was 

initially reviewed by Kostrinsky. 

4. The attorneys for Sands China at the Glaser Weil firm were aware of the 

existence of the transferred data on Kostrinsky's computer from shortly after their retention in 

November 2010. 

5. The transferred data was reviewed in Kostrinsky's office by attorneys from 

Holland & Hart. 

6. On April 22, 2011, in house counsel for Sands China, Anne Salt, participated in 

the Rule 16 conference by videoconference and responded to inquiry by the Court related to 

electronically stored information and confirmed preservation of the data. 

7. At no time during the Rule 16 conference did Ms. Salt or anyone on behalf of 

Sands China advise the Court of the potential impact of the Macau Personal Data Privacy Act 

(MDP A) upon discovery in this litigation. 

8. Following the Rule 16 conference with the Court, the parties filed a Joint Status 

Report on April 22, 20 11, in which they agreed that the initial disclosure of documents 

pursuant to NRCP 16.1 would be made by Sands China and Las Vegas Sands prior to July 1, 

2011. The MDP A is not mentioned in the Joint Status Report as potentially affecting 

discovery in this litigation. 

9. Following the Rule 16 conference, no production or other identification of the 

information from the transferred data was made. 

10. Beginning with the motion filed May 17, 2011, Sands China and Las Vegas 

Sands raised the MDP A as a potential impediment (if not a bar) to production of certain 

documents. 
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11. At a hearing on June 9, 2012, counsel for Sands China represented to the Court 

that the documents subject to production were in Macau; were not allowed to leave Macau; 

and, had to be reviewed by counsel for Sands China in Macau prior to requesting the Office of 

Personal Data Protection in Macau for permission to release those documents for discovery 

purposes in the United States. 

12. At the time of the representation made on June 9, 2012, the transferred data had 

already been copied; the copy removed from Macau; and reviewed in Las Vegas by 

representatives of Las Vegas Sands. 

13. The transferred data was stored on a Las Vegas Sands shared drive totaling 50-

60 gigabytes of information. 

14. Prior to July 2011, Las Vegas Sands had full and complete access to documents 

in the possession of Sands China in Macau through a network to network connection. 

15. Beginning in approximately July 2011, Las Vegas Sands access to Sands China 

data changed as a result of corporate decision making. 

16. Prior to the access change, significant amounts of data from Macau related to 

17 Jacobs was transported to the United States and reviewed by in house counsel for Las Vegas 

18 Sands and outside counsel, and placed on shared drives at Las Vegas Sands. 

19 17. At no time did Las Vegas Sands or Sands China disclose the existence of this 

20 data to the Court. 4 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

18. At no time did Las Vegas Sands or Sands China provide a privilege log 

identifYing documents which it contended were protected by the MDP A which was discussed 

by the Court on June 9, 2011. 

4 
While Las Vegas Sands contends that a disclosure was made on June 9, 2011, this is inconsistent with 

other actions and statements made to the Court including the June 27, 2012 status report, the June 28, 
2012 hearing and the July 6, 2012 status report. 
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1 19. For the first time on June 27, 2012, in a written status report, Las Vegas Sands 

2 and Sands China advised the Court that Las Vegas Sands was in possession of over 100,000 

3 emails and other ESI that had been transferred "in error". 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

20. In the June 27, 2012 status report, Las Vegas Sands admits that it did not 

disclose the existence of the transferred data because it wanted to review the Jacobs ESI.5 

21. Any finding of fact stated hereinabove that is more appropriately deemed a 

conclusion of law shall be so deemed. 

Ill. 
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

22. The MDP A and its impact upon production of documents related to discovery 

has been an issue of serious contention between the parties in motion practice before this Court 

since May 2011. 

23. The MDPA has been an issue with regards to documents, which are the subject 

of the jurisdictional discovery. 

24. At no time prior to June 28, 2012, was the Court informed that a significant 

amount of the ESI in the form of a ghost image relevant to this litigation had actually been 

taken out of Macau in July or August of 2010 by way of a portable electronic device. 

25. EDCR Rule 7.60 provides in pertinent part: 

* * * 
(b) The court may, after notice and an opportunity to be heard, impose upon an 

attorney or a party any and all sanctions which may, under the facts of the case, be reasonable, 

including the imposition of fines, costs or attorney's fees when an attorney or a party without 

just cause: 

* * * 
(3) So multiplies the proceedings in a case as to increase costs unreasonably 

and vexatiously. 

5 The Court notes that there have also been significant issues with the production of information from 
Jacobs. On appropriate motion the Court will deal with those issues. 
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26. As a result of the failure to disclose the existence of the transferred data, the 

Court conducted needless hearings on the following dates which involved (at least in part) the 

MDPA issues: 

27. 

May 26, 2011 

June 9, 2011 

July 19,2011 

September 20, 2011 6 

October 4, 2011 7 

October 13, 2011 

January 3, 2012 

March 8, 2012 

May 24,2012 

The Court concludes after hearing the testimony of witnesses that the 100,000 

emails and other ESI were not transferred in error, but was purposefully brought into the 

United States after a request by Las Vegas Sands for preservation purposes. 

28. The transferred data is relevant to the evidentiary hearing related to jurisdiction, 

which the Court intends to conduct. 

29. The change in corporate policy regarding Las Vegas Sands access to Sands 

China data made during the course of this ongoing litigation was made with an intent to 

prevent the disclosure of the transferred data as well as other data. 8 

30. The Defendants concealed the existence of the transferred data from this Court. 

6 This hearing was conducted in a related case, A648484. 

7 This hearing was conducted in a related case, A648484. 

8 While the Court recognizes that several other legal proceedings related to certain allegations made by 
Jacobs were commenced during the course of this litigation including subpoenas from the SEC and DOJ, 
this does not excuse the failure to disclose the existence of the transferred data; the failure to identify the 
transferred data on a privilege log, or the failure produce of the transferred data in this matter. 
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31. As the transferred data had already been reviewed by counsel, the failure to 

disclose the existence of this transferred data to the Court caused repeated and unnecessary 

motion practice before this Court. 

32. The lack of disclosure appears to the Court to be an attempt by Defendants to 

stall the discovery, and in particular, the jurisdictional discovery in these proceedings. 

33. Given the number of occasions the MDP A and the production of ESI by 

Defendants was discussed there can be no other conclusions than that the conduct was 

repetitive and abusive. 

34. The conduct however does not rise to the level of striking pleadings as exhibited 

in the Foster v, Dingwall, 227 P.3d 1042 (Nev. 2010) or the entry of default as in Goodyear v. 

Bahena, 235 P.3d 592 (Nev. 2010) cases. 9 

35. After evaluating the factors in Ribiero v. Young, 106 Nev. 88 (1990), the Court 

finds: 

a. There are varymg degrees of willfulness demonstrated by the 

Defendants and their agents in failing to disclose the transferred data to Plaintiff ranging from 

careless nondisclosure to knowing, willful and intentional conduct with an intent to prevent the 

Plaintiff access to information discoverable for the jurisdictional proceedings; 10 

b. There are varying degrees of willfulness demonstrated by the 

Defendants and their agents ranging from careless nondisclosure to knowing, willful and 

intentional conduct in concealing the existence of the transferred data and failing to disclose 

the transferred data to the Court with an intent to prevent the Court ruling on the 

discoverability for purposes of the jurisdictional proceedings; 

9 The Court recognizes no factors have been provided to guide in the evaluation of sanctions for conduct 
in violation ofEDCR 7.60, but utilizes cases interpreting Rule 37 violations as instructive. 

10 As a result of the stay, the court does not address the discoverability of the transferred data and the 
effect ofthe conduct related to the entire case. 
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1 c. The repeated nature of Defendants and Defendants' agents conduct in 

2 making inaccurate representations over a several month period is further evidence of the 

3 intention to deceive the Court; 

4 d. Based upon the evidence currently before the Court it does not appear 

5 that any evidence has been irreparably lost; 11 

6 e. There is a public policy to prevent further abuses and deter litigants from 

7 concealing discoverable information and intentionally deceiving the Court in an attempt to 

8 advance its claims; and 

9 f. The delay and prejudice to the Plaintiff in prepanng his case is 

10 significant, however, a sanction less severe than striking claims, defenses or pleadings can be 

11 fashioned to ameliorate the prejudice. 

12 36. The Court after evaluation of the evidence and testimony, weighing the factors 

13 and evaluating alternative sanctions determines that evidentiary and monetary sanctions are an 

14 alternative less severe sanction to address the conduct that has occurred in this matter. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

37. Any conclusion of law stated hereinabove that is more appropriately deemed a 

finding of fact shall be so deemed. 

IV. 

ORDER 

Therefore the Court makes the following order: 

a. For purposes of jurisdictional discovery and the evidentiary hearing related to 

jurisdiction, Las Vegas Sands and Sands China will be precluded from raising the MDP A as an 

objection or as a defense to admission, disclosure or production of any documents. 12 

11 There is an issue that has been raised regarding the current location of those computers and hard drives 
from which the ghost image was made. The Court does not in this Order address any issues related to 
those items. 

12 
This does not prevent the Defendants from raising any other appropriate objection or privilege. 
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b. For purposes of jurisdictional discovery and the evidentiary hearing related to 

jurisdiction, Las Vegas Sands and Sands China are precluded from contesting that Jacobs ESI 

(approx. 40 gigabytes) is not rightfully in his possession. 13 

c. Defendants will make a contribution of $25,000 to the Legal Aid Center of 

Southern Nevada. 

d. Reasonable attorneys' fees of Plaintiff will be awarded upon filing an 

appropriate motion for those fees incurred in conjunction with those portions of the hearings 

related to the MDPA identified in paragraph 26. 

Dated this 14th day of September, 2012 

I hereby certify that on or about the date fil d, this document was copied through e­

mail, or a copy of this Order was placed in the attorn 's folder in the Clerk's Office or mailed 

to the proper person as follows: 

J. Stephen Peek, Esq. (Holland & Hart) 

Samuel Lionel, Esq. (Lionel Sawyer & Collins) 

Brad D. Brian Esq. (Munger Tolles & Olson) 

James J. Pisanelli, Esq. (Pisanelli Bice) 

Dan Kutinac 

13 This does not prevent the Defendants from raising any other appropriate objection or privilege. 
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1             DEPOSITION OF MICHAEL LEVEN,
2 taken at 3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800,
3 Las Vegas, Nevada, on Tuesday, December 4, 2012, at
4 9:00 a.m., before Carre Lewis, Certified Court
5 Reporter, in and for the State of Nevada.
6
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        BY:  STEPHEN PEEK, ESQ.
17         9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

        Las Vegas, NV 89169
18         (702) 669-4600

        speek@hollandandhart.com
19

For Sands China Limited:
20

        KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP
21         BY:  MARK M. JONES, ESQ.

        3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
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        (702) 385-6000
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24
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1 APPEARANCES (continued):

2 For Sheldon Adelson, Las Vegas Sands:

3         LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP.
        BY:  IRA H. RAPHAELSON, ESQ.

4         GLOBAL GENERAL COUNSEL
        3355 Las Vegas Boulevard South

5         Las Vegas, Nevada 89109
        (702) 733-5503

6         ira.raphaelson2lasvegassands.com

7 The Videographer:

8         Litigation Services
        By: Matthew Riggio
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10         (702) 314-7200

11 Also Present:

12         Steven Jacobs
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1                     Michael Leven
2         Jacobs vs Las Vegas Sands Corporation
3               Tuesday, December 4, 2012
4               Carre Lewis, CCR No. 497
5                    E X H I B I T S
6  NUMBER                                       PAGE
7  Exhibit 1      July 23, 2010 Sheldon          151

                Adelson Letter
8

 Exhibit 2      Q2, 2010 Earnings              179
9                 Transcript Conference Call

10  Exhibit 3      E-Mail String                  220
11  Exhibit 4      E-Mail String                  223
12  Exhibit 5      E-Mail Re KNA Invoices         232
13  Exhibit 6      Notification of termination    240

                with cause of the
14                 employment contract
15  Exhibit 7      E-Mail String Re SGA           249

                Conversation
16

 Exhibit 8      E-Mail Re Design Decisions     255
17                 for 5 and 6
18  Exhibit 9      E-Mail Re Acting President     262

                Macau
19
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1     Q.   Did you carry with you a letter to give to

2 Mr. Jacobs?

3          MR. PEEK:  Don't answer that.

4          MR. BICE:  Mark this as Exhibit 1, I guess.

5          (Exhibit 1 marked.)

6 BY MR. BICE:

7     Q.   I will show you what's been marked as

8 Exhibit 1, Mr. Leven.  Have you seen this document

9 before?

10     A.   Yes.

11     Q.   When is the first time you saw it?

12     A.   I don't remember.

13     Q.   Did you see it prior to July 23 of 2010?

14     A.   Yes.

15     Q.   Did you play a role in preparing it?

16     A.   I don't remember.

17     Q.   Do you know who did?

18     A.   I don't.

19     Q.   Do you know where it was prepared?

20     A.   I don't know.  I can make an assumption,

21 but I don't know.

22     Q.   What's your belief?

23     A.   Las Vegas.

24     Q.   Do you know whether or not the legal

25 department in Las Vegas was involved in its

Exhibit 1

Exhibit 1

Exhibit 1
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1 preparation?

2     A.   I don't.

3     Q.   Do you know who all reviewed any earlier

4 drafts of it?

5     A.   I don't know.

6     Q.   Did you review an earlier draft of it?

7          MR. PEEK:  Objection.  Foundation.  Assumes

8 that there was earlier drafts.

9 BY MR. BICE:

10     Q.   Were there earlier drafts that you

11 reviewed?

12     A.   No, I don't remember.

13     Q.   Who gave you this letter -- or was it given

14 to you?

15     A.   I carried this letter with me for the

16 meeting with Mr. Jacobs.

17     Q.   So you departed Las Vegas with this letter

18 in hand?

19     A.   I'm not a hundred percent sure.

20     Q.   Did you have or did -- was there Sands

21 China letterhead here in Las Vegas, to your

22 knowledge?

23     A.   I don't know.

24     Q.   Does this letter look like the Sands China

25 letterhead that you had seen?
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1     A.   I don't recall Sands China's letterhead.

2 I'm sure there is some, but I don't recall.

3     Q.   Did this letter fall under the shared

4 services agreement, in your view?

5     A.   No.

6     Q.   Why not?

7     A.   This is a letter from the chairman of Sands

8 China LTD terminating the CEO, so it would not be a

9 shared service agreement.

10     Q.   Did human resources in Las Vegas, does that

11 fall under the shared services agreement?

12     A.   Yes.

13     Q.   You have already said that the legal

14 department does, correct?

15     A.   Yes.

16     Q.   And so would any role that human resources

17 or the legal department prepared in the preparation

18 of this letter, would that fall within the shared

19 services agreement?

20          MR. PEEK:  I'm going to object to the lack

21 of foundation.  I mean, he has already answered

22 this.  It's just your way of trying to get a

23 different answer because you didn't like the first

24 one.

25          MR. BICE:  No, it's actually --

APP000069



MICHAEL LEVEN - 12/4/2012

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595

Page 154

1          MR. PEEK:  You asked him whether it was

2 part of the shared services agreement and he says

3 "no."

4          MR. BICE:  I'm trying to follow up.

5          MR. PEEK:  And now you are trying to say it

6 was.

7          MR. BICE:  No, I'm trying to say whether

8 the services that went into the creation of the

9 letter, and your coaching is inappropriate.

10 BY MR. BICE:

11     Q.   Were the services -- if services in

12 Las Vegas were used in the preparation of this

13 letter, Mr. Leven, were they -- are those services

14 that fall within the shared services agreement?

15          MR. PEEK:  Objection.  That's an incomplete

16 hypothetical.  Doesn't go to jurisdiction here.

17          MR. BICE:  Absolutely does.

18          MR. JONES:  And lack of foundation as well.

19          MR. PEEK:  It's an incomplete hypothetical,

20 you know.  If there were this, then this.

21          MR. BICE:  He still has to answer it and

22 you both know it.

23          MR. PEEK:  No, he doesn't.

24          MR. BICE:  So I would appreciate stopping

25 the witness coaching because you don't like the
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1 answer.

2          MR. PEEK:  I like the answers, Mr. Bice.

3 BY MR. BICE:

4     Q.   Mr. Leven, the services go into this

5 agreement?

6     A.   If, in fact, Mr. Adelson used the legal

7 department of -- of LVS to write the letter for him,

8 since the legal department in Sands China was in

9 Macau, and if, in fact, he wanted a letter written

10 in a confidential way so that it wasn't exposed to

11 the legal department in Macau, you could make the

12 argument that it would be a shared service part, but

13 I would doubt very highly whether we would charge

14 for that service as shared service.  So you are

15 trying to define what shared services is.

16 Mr. Adelson had every right to use anybody in

17 Las Vegas to help him as the chairman of Macau, of

18 Sands China, to deliver the letter, so whether you

19 define it shared service or not shared service I

20 don't see where it's relevant.

21     Q.   You say that Mr. Adelson had the right to

22 use anyone in Las Vegas -- I apologize.  Let me make

23 sure I got your answer.

24          "Mr. Adelson had every right to use anybody

25 in Las Vegas to help him as the chairman of Macau,
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1 that.

2          Did you let Mr. Jacobs know in advance you

3 were coming?

4          MR. PEEK:  Don't answer that.

5 BY MR. BICE:

6     Q.   How long after you arrived did you meet

7 with him?

8          MR. PEEK:  Go ahead.

9          THE WITNESS:  The plan was to meet with

10 Mr. Jacobs very early in the morning.

11 BY MR. BICE:

12     Q.   You say the "plan."  What plan are you

13 talking about?

14     A.   Mr. -- Mr. Siegel and I were going to meet

15 with Mr. Jacobs to have the meeting with Mr. Jacobs

16 about his termination.

17     Q.   Is that -- is that a plan that you and

18 Mr. Siegel had reached with Mr. Adelson?

19     A.   Yes.

20     Q.   And did you reach that plan in Las Vegas

21 prior to your departure?

22     A.   I advised Mr. Adelson of my recommendation

23 as to how to handle it.  He added or subtracted by

24 his wish one way or the other.  And the plan was to

25 meet with Mr. Jacobs early in the morning and have
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1 Steve Jacobs were going to resign on the basis of

2 our meeting, that I would take over as temporary

3 acting CEO, and that I was going to hope to put

4 somebody there to sit there and watch while we were

5 in the process of recruiting a replacement.

6     Q.   Is that -- when you departed for Macau, was

7 that your understanding?

8     A.   That was my understanding.

9     Q.   Had you discussed that issue, you becoming

10 acting CEO, with any of the other board members of

11 SCL?

12     A.   I don't remember.

13     Q.   Well, did you -- after you and Mr. Adelson

14 had had that discussion -- it sounds like shortly

15 before you departed for Macau; is that fair?

16     A.   Uh-huh.  Yes.  Yes.

17     Q.   Shortly before you departed for Macau, did

18 you contact any of the other SCL board members

19 regarding your plan?

20          MR. PEEK:  Objection.  Vague and ambiguous.

21 There were a number of plans that you have had him

22 discuss with you.  I don't know -- when you say

23 "that plan," what do you mean by "that plan"?  Maybe

24 the witness knows.

25          THE WITNESS:  During the course of time
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1 between June 23 and July 23 plans were made as to

2 what would happen as to how we would replace

3 Steve -- excuse me -- Mr. Jacobs --

4 BY MR. BICE:

5     Q.   Understood.

6     A.   -- and what would be -- what would be

7 the -- how we would manage the transition time after

8 he departed.

9     Q.   Who was involved in that planning?

10     A.   I was recommending the plan.  I would be

11 talking to Mr. Adelson, the chair, and we would

12 present that plan to the board.

13     Q.   Was that plan presented to the board?

14     A.   I think board members were -- it was

15 discussed with board members.  I don't know how many

16 board members, but it was discussed.

17     Q.   Did you discuss it with them?

18     A.   I don't remember.

19     Q.   Was there ever any sort of formal action

20 taken, to your knowledge, to implement this plan?

21     A.   I -- I don't remember any formal knowledge.

22     Q.   Was there ever any board meeting regarding

23 this plan, to your knowledge?

24     A.   There would be a record of such.  I don't

25 remember myself.
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1     Q.   When you say some of the board members were

2 consulted, were the independent board members

3 consulted?

4     A.   Certainly David Turnbull was consulted.

5     Q.   Any of the others?

6     A.   I don't remember anybody else.

7     Q.   During that month-long period, was the

8 legal department in Las Vegas involved in that

9 planning?

10     A.   I don't recall that they were.

11     Q.   Was the legal department in Macau involved

12 in that planning?

13     A.   No.

14     Q.   Is it a fair inference that if there was a

15 legal department involved in it, it would have been

16 in Las Vegas?

17     A.   If there were a legal department involved

18 and not if there was a legal department involved,

19 right?

20     Q.   Yes, sir.

21     A.   If there were a legal department

22 involvement it would have been in Las Vegas, not in

23 Macau.

24     Q.   Understood.

25          Would it be your belief that if a legal
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1 department were involved in that planning, that it

2 would have been under the terms of the shared

3 services agreement?

4     A.   It might have been under the shared service

5 agreement, and in fact that would be a shared

6 service.  Whether or not it was charged for or not,

7 I wouldn't know.

8     Q.   Understood.

9          Was a press release prepared at some point

10 regarding the termination?

11     A.   Yes.

12     Q.   And were you involved in its preparation?

13     A.   Yes.

14     Q.   Where was it prepared at?

15     A.   In Las Vegas.

16     Q.   Was it prepared prior to your departure?

17     A.   You know, I don't remember.  I don't

18 remember.  In fact -- let me take it back.  I'm

19 pretty sure it was done in Las Vegas but I don't

20 remember exactly when.  As part of the plan, it

21 would be likely that we had a press release prepared

22 for that day.

23     Q.   And who would have been involved in the

24 preparation of such a press release?

25     A.   Legal department and the public relations
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1 department.

2     Q.   And those would be both here in Las Vegas,

3 correct?

4     A.   Under this circumstance, they would be.

5 They wouldn't be if it was a termination of a

6 lower-level employee in Macau.

7     Q.   Who in 2010 would have been heading up the

8 public relations department that would be involved

9 in such a press release?

10     A.   Ron Reese, VP communications.

11     Q.   Do you recall meeting with Mr. Reese about

12 this subject matter?

13     A.   I don't remember.

14     Q.   Do you recall meeting with anyone in -- not

15 about substance.  I'm just asking do you recall

16 meeting with anyone in the legal department about

17 this subject matter?

18     A.   Yes.

19     Q.   Who was it that you would have met with?

20     A.   I would have met with the general counsel.

21     Q.   Would that at that time have been Gayle?

22     A.   Gayle.

23     Q.   Did you meet with anyone affiliated with

24 the Las Vegas Sands compliance committee?

25     A.   No.
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1     Q.   Did you meet with Rob Rubenstein regarding

2 this subject matter?

3     A.   I don't recall meeting with Rob Rubenstein.

4     Q.   What was going to be the terms of -- well,

5 strike that.

6          What were the terms of your becoming CEO of

7 SCL?

8     A.   When you say "terms," you are talking about

9 remuneration, you are talking about time?  What are

10 you talking about?

11     Q.   You know what, that's a fair request for

12 clarification, so let's break it down.

13          You were going to become -- what was your

14 title going to be?

15     A.   I was the acting CEO in the transition.

16     Q.   All right.  Did you have any expectation

17 for how long that was going to last?

18     A.   As short as possible.

19     Q.   That was your desire anyway?

20     A.   That was my expectation.

21     Q.   What was the financial arrangement going to

22 be in terms of either to you personally or to

23 Las Vegas Sands for your services?

24     A.   There was no financial arrangement.

25     Q.   You were doing it without compensation?
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1     A.   Uh-huh.

2     Q.   Okay.  What was the purpose of this

3 meeting, do you recall?

4     A.   It looks to me like this really is a major

5 design meeting for 5 and 6, for the restart of 5 and

6 6 or to plan to restart 5 and 6.

7     Q.   Do you recall how many days this meeting

8 lasted?

9     A.   I don't.

10     Q.   Do you recall, were there others in

11 attendance other than the people listed on the

12 e-mail?

13     A.   I don't.  It's too long.

14          MR. BICE:  I said we were going to stop so

15 you can go because I know you are eager to leave, so

16 we will suspend at this point and we will argue

17 later about whether you will be back.

18          So, thank you for your time, Mr. Leven.

19          MR. PEEK:  Thank you, Mr. Bice.

20          THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Off the record at 4:52.

21          (Deposition concluded at 4:52 p.m.)

22                         -oOo-

23

24

25
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6 NUMBER                                        PAGE
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                SCL00120910 - 911
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1          (Exhibit 41 marked.)

2 BY MR. BICE:

3     Q.   Showing you what's been marked as

4 Exhibit 41.

5          Have you reviewed this, Exhibit 41,             03:16:57

6 Mr. Leven?

7     A.   Uh-huh.

8     Q.   Do you have any reason to believe that you

9 did not receive this?

10     A.   No.                                             03:17:02

11     Q.   And Ron Reese is based here in Las Vegas,

12 correct?

13     A.   Correct.

14     Q.   Okay.  And is it true that the plan for

15 terminating Mr. Jacobs was being carried out here in     03:17:14

16 Las Vegas?

17     A.   No.  The plan -- the -- the arrangements

18 for carrying out the termination of Steve Jacobs was

19 developed here and executed there.

20     Q.   Where --                                        03:17:29

21          (Discussion held off the record.)

22 BY MR. BICE:

23     Q.   The -- you say that the plan was -- let me

24 get your words right.

25          The arrangements for carrying out the           03:17:49
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1 termination was developed here and executed there?

2     A.   That's correct.

3     Q.   Okay.  Where was the press release sent out

4 from?

5     A.   I can't tell you that.                          03:17:59

6     Q.   Okay.  Where was it generated?

7     A.   Ron Reese is the VP of communications here.

8 The -- generally, I would say it would -- it says

9 here, "Here's a draft," so I don't know where the

10 thing went out from.  It could have gone out from        03:18:18

11 Hong Kong or Macau or from here.

12     Q.   Okay.  Where was it prepared?

13     A.   I'm sure it was prepared here.

14     Q.   Were there any documents surrounding

15 Mr. Jacobs's termination that were actually prepared     03:18:30

16 in Macau, to your knowledge?

17     A.   I don't know how many documents were

18 prepared in either place.  I have no idea.

19     Q.   Weren't the documents for his removal as an

20 officer prepared in Las Vegas?                           03:18:46

21     A.   I don't -- frankly, I don't think so.  I

22 think there were documents prepared in Macau that we

23 had to sign and do there, but I'm not a hundred

24 percent certain.

25     Q.   Did any of the board members for Sands          03:19:07
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1 China give any input, to your knowledge, on the

2 termination statement?

3          MR. PEEK:  Don't answer that.

4          Getting into, again, the merits, Mr. Bice.

5          MR. BICE:  No.  I'm getting into who's          03:19:24

6 making the decisions, so we'll take that up.

7          MR. PEEK:  Go ahead and answer that

8 question that I'd given the instruction.  I'll

9 withdraw my objection.

10          THE WITNESS:  Am I supposed to answer now?      03:19:47

11          MR. PEEK:  Go ahead and answer the

12 question again.

13          THE WITNESS:  Ask it again.

14          MR. BICE:  Sure.

15 BY MR. BICE:                                             03:19:51

16     Q.   The question was did any of the Sands China

17 board members give any input on the termination

18 statement.

19     A.   I don't believe so.

20          (Exhibit 42 marked.)                            03:20:08

21 BY MR. BICE:

22     Q.   I show you now what's been marked as

23 Exhibit 42.

24     A.   Uh-huh.

25     Q.   You did provide comments though, it looks       03:20:29
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1 BY MR. BICE:

2     Q.   Exhibit 51, Mr. Leven, did you have any

3 role in its preparation?

4     A.   Well, I didn't write it, but I was asked

5 for a variety of reasons to summarize some of the        04:00:36

6 reasons of why this event occurred.

7     Q.   Okay.  And who were you asked by?

8     A.   By the chairman and by the legal

9 department.

10     Q.   And "the legal department" being which          04:00:48

11 legal department?

12     A.   At that point, it was Gayle Hyman.  The

13 legal department in Macau was not qualified.

14     Q.   Okay.

15     A.   So we did it with -- we did it with -- with     04:00:58

16 her.

17          MR. PEEK:  You asked him all of these same

18 questions:  Do you know where it was drafted?

19          No.

20          Did you know -- did you have any                04:01:09

21 involvement in drafting it?

22          You asked him all of these questions

23 already, previously.

24          MR. BICE:  And obviously he has developed

25 some different recollection of it today, hasn't he,      04:01:15
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1 since he now apparently does know where it was

2 generated and why it was generated and who was

3 involved.

4          MR. PEEK:  He asked for a variety of

5 reasons to summarize it.                                 04:01:29

6          MR. BICE:  All right.  By the legal

7 department here in Las Vegas.

8          MR. PEEK:  Well, you asked if he any

9 involvement in drafting it.  He said he didn't draft

10 it.                                                      04:01:38

11          MR. BICE:  Okay.

12          MR. PEEK:  Go ahead.

13          MR. BICE:  Is that your objection?

14          THE WITNESS:  Go ahead, what?

15 BY MR. BICE:                                             04:01:46

16     Q.   Did you review it with any -- when you were

17 involved in giving input on this, in what capacity

18 were you acting, as the --

19     A.   Well, at this point, I'm the acting CEO of

20 Sands China, am I not?                                   04:02:03

21     Q.   Okay.  And did you give the input into the

22 drafting of this -- you gave that to personnel in

23 Las Vegas, correct, as the acting CEO?

24     A.   The letter comes from the managing director

25 in Macau.  This was in compliance with Macau law, I      04:02:14
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1 believe, that we had to do this kind of stuff.

2          This may have come from -- on the advice of

3 our attorneys in Macau as well as our attorneys in

4 Las Vegas.

5     Q.   But my question to you, Mr. Leven, was in       04:02:25

6 your providing input into the substance of the

7 letter, you provided that input to the lawyers in

8 Las Vegas, correct, in your capacity as acting CEO

9 of Sands China?

10     A.   I believe I gave input on some of these         04:02:43

11 elements way before August 5th and way before this

12 letter.

13     Q.   Okay.  How about after or once the letter

14 was starting to be generated?

15     A.   I'm sure I -- I'm positive that I looked at     04:02:54

16 the letter before it went out.

17     Q.   Okay.  And are you also positive that you

18 provided input into the specifics that are

19 identified in the letter?

20     A.   Some of them.  Not all of them.                 04:03:05

21     Q.   And you would have provided that

22 information in your capacity as acting CEO of Sands

23 China, correct?

24     A.   I may have provided some of this input

25 prior to being the acting CEO for Sands China.           04:03:17
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1     Q.   All right.  Any information you provided

2 after becoming acting CEO of Sands China, you would

3 have provided in that capacity; is that correct?

4     A.   I would think so.

5     Q.   When was the earliest date you can recall       04:03:33

6 providing any information -- any of these reasons to

7 the legal department in Las Vegas?

8     A.   Probably sometime between the last week of

9 June and the time this letter had come out, there

10 were discussions.                                        04:03:55

11     Q.   Okay.  How about prior to -- had you

12 provided any of these reasons to the legal

13 department in Las Vegas prior to your meeting with

14 Mr. Jacobs in Macau, where you asked for his

15 resignation?                                             04:04:09

16     A.   Yes.

17     Q.   Do you believe you had provided all of

18 them --

19     A.   No.

20     Q.   -- prior to that date?                          04:04:13

21     A.   No.

22     Q.   Can you tell me, in looking at Exhibit 51,

23 which ones do you believe you provided to the legal

24 department in Las Vegas prior to --

25     A.   I could not remember which ones I talked        04:04:25
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1          MR. JONES:  Thank you.

2          THE VIDEOGRAPHER:  Going off the record at

3 5:14 p.m.

4          (Deposition concluded at 5:14 p.m.)

5                         -oOo-
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1                CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

2 STATE OF NEVADA  )
                 ) SS:

3 COUNTY OF CLARK  )

4     I, Carre Lewis, a duly commissioned and licensed

5 Court Reporter, Clark County, State of Nevada, do

6 hereby certify:  That I reported the taking of the

7 deposition of the witness, Michael Leven, commencing

8 on Friday, February 1, 2013, at 11:24 a.m.

9     That prior to being examined, the witness was,

10 by me, duly sworn to testify to the truth.  That I

11 thereafter transcribed my said shorthand notes into

12 typewriting and that the typewritten transcript of

13 said deposition is a complete, true and accurate

14 transcription of said shorthand notes.

15     I further certify that I am not a relative or

16 employee of an attorney or counsel of any of the

17 parties, nor a relative or employee of an attorney

18 or counsel involved in said action, nor a person

19 financially interested in the action.

20     IN WITNESS HEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand,

21 in my office, in the County of Clark, State of

22 Nevada, this 10th day of February 2013.

23

24
                      _____________________________

25                       CARRE LEWIS, CCR NO. 497
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TRAN
DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
* * * * *

STEVEN JACOBS                .
                             .
             Plaintiff       .   CASE NO. A-627691
                             .

     vs.                .
                             .   DEPT. NO. XI
LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., et al..
                             .   Transcript of
             Defendants      .   Proceedings
 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

HEARING ON MOTION TO STAY ORDER

THURSDAY, JUNE 27, 2013

APPEARANCES:

FOR THE PLAINTIFF: TODD BICE, ESQ.
ERIC ALDRIAN, ESQ.
DEBRA SPINELLI, ESQ.

FOR THE DEFENDANTS: J. STEPHEN PEEK, ESQ.
JON RANDALL JONES, ESQ.
MARK JONES, ESQ.

COURT RECORDER: TRANSCRIPTION BY:

JILL HAWKINS           FLORENCE HOYT
District Court      Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript
produced by transcription service.
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1 LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, JUNE 27, 2013, 8:16 A.M.

2 (Court was called to order)

3 THE COURT:  Good morning, gentlemen.  Who's on the

4 telephone?

5 MR. PEEK:  Stephen Peek, Your Honor.  Good morning.

6 THE COURT:  Mr. Peek, good morning.  Do you plan to

7 argue today, or is Mr. Mark Jones and Mr. Randall Jones

8 arguing?

9 MR. PEEK:  Mr. Randall Jones will be arguing.  I

10 will certainly [inaudible] because I represent Las Vegas

11 Sands, but I join in whatever arguments Mr. Jones makes.

12 THE COURT:  Well, here's the issue.  Since you're on

13 the telephone up at the bench, you may not be able to hear

14 them as well unless I make them come stand at the bench.  So

15 I'm trying to evaluate whether I make them pick up all their

16 crap and come up here, because they've got very organized

17 stacks today.

18 MR. PEEK:  Your Honor, don't make them come up to

19 the bench and interfere with their argument.  I'll do my best

20 to try and listen.

21 THE COURT:  All right.  Mr. Randall Jones, it looks

22 like you're arguing the motion this morning.

23 MR. RANDALL JONES:  I am, Your Honor.

24 THE COURT:  Okay.  Good morning.

25 MR. RANDALL JONES:  I'll be honored.  For the
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1 If it was really that your forensic consultant had done an

2 analysis and believed that Mr. Jacobs had stolen information,

3 I would have anticipated sometime in that early time frame I

4 would have seen a report from the forensic analysis, who would

5 have said, gosh, look, Judge, this is all he stole.  To date I

6 still haven't seen it.  This is now June 2013.

7 MR. RANDALL JONES:  And, Your Honor, I think you --

8 your point makes the point, that if we would have believed at

9 that time that Mr. Jacobs would have taken 44 gigabytes or

10 11 gigabytes -- I read all those letters and I've seen all the

11 correspondence -- if we would have believed that he would have

12 taken that, we would have taken action.  What you -- and I

13 know it's in this letter --

14 THE COURT:  You did take action.  You filed a

15 separate lawsuit.  I then told Mr. Jones I didn't think it was

16 an appropriate second lawsuit.  The reason he filed it was

17 because of the stay the Nevada Supreme Court had issued in

18 Case Number 58294.  He then took an appeal of the dismissal of

19 that lawsuit, and the Supreme Court -- I don't remember if it

20 was a writ or an appeal, but the Supreme Court scolded him,

21 and I apologized to him myself because I had thought it was an

22 inappropriate tactic to file a separate suit in this discovery

23 dispute about that issue.  So there's a lot of history.  We've

24 been dealing with this issue for a while.  But all of a sudden

25 it comes to a head and now you're asking for a writ right
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1 Under the particular circumstances of this case,

2 which has a tortured history, given the pending writ issued in

3 the Supreme Court Case Number 58294, the lengthy delay in

4 addressing this particular issue, the Court declines to issue

5 a stay and will proceed with the evidentiary hearing ordered

6 to be conducted pursuant to the writ of mandamus issued in

7 Case Number 582984 beginning on July 16th, unless the Nevada

8 Supreme Court tells me otherwise.

9 MR. RANDALL JONES:  Thank you, Your Honor.

10 MR. BICE:  Thank you, Your Honor.

11 THE COURT:  Good luck.  Have a nice day.

12 MR. BICE:  We will get you an order today, Your

13 Honor.

14 THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 9:21 A.M.

15 * * * * *

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL
SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

 7/2/13
                                                    
FLORENCE HOYT, TRANSCRIBER   DATE
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Eric T. Aldrian

From: "Fetaz, Max" <Dept11LC@clarkcountycourts.us> 
Date: June 28, 2013, 8:40:23 PM CDT 
To: Todd Bice <tlb@pisanellibice.com>, 'Debra Spinelli' <dls@pisanellibice.com>, 'Randall Jones' 
<r.jones@kempjones.com>, Mark Jones <m.jones@kempjones.com>, Steve Peek <SPeek@hollandhart.com>, 
Robert Cassity <rcassity@hollandhart.com> 
Cc: "Kutinac, Daniel" <KutinacD@clarkcountycourts.us> 
Subject: A627691 Jacobs v. Sands 

Counsel, 
  
Given the NVSC Order filed today (June 28, 2013) in case no. 63444, the Court vacated the Jurisdictional 
Hearing previously set to begin on July 16, 2013. 
  
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 
  
Thank you, 
  
----------------------------------------------- 
Maximilien Fetaz 
Law Clerk to the Honorable Elizabeth Gonzalez 
District Court Department XI 
Phone:  702.671.4375 
Fax:      702.671.4377 
----------------------------------------------- 
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